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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of RAJASTHAN SUN TECHNIQUE ENERGY PV'L. LTD

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of RAJASTHAN SUN TECHNIQUE ENERGY PVT. LTD
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
other comprehensive income), Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (“hereinafter referred to as Financial Statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of atfairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, and loss and other com prehensive income,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Cthics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Material Uncertainty Related to Geing Concern

The Company has incurred a net loss of Rs. 17,645 lakhs during the year ended March 31, 2023 and
accumulated loss of Rs. 1,94,353 Lakhs, We also draw attention to note 4 to the financial statements with
respect to continuing default in repayment of outstanding dues to Lenders, as at March 31, 2023 The
default on account of Principal was Rs. 59,064 Lakh and Rs. 32,564 Lakh towards the interest (K.Y, 2021~
22 Rs. 40,903 Lakh towards the Principal and Rs. 18,572 Lakhs towards the interest).

As of that date this indicates that the Company may not meet future installments and other obligations
through its own cash flows. The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of going concern
assumption for the basis stated in the said note.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the same.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of. our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below our description of how our audit addressed the
matter is provided in that context

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the auditors’ responsibilities for the Financial
Statements section of our report including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risk of material misstatement of
the financial statement of the Financial Statements. The result of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on
the accompanying Financial Statements.

Following are the brief summary of Key Audit Matters:

Sr. Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed

No.

Capital Advances to Related Party

1 The company had made a capital advance to | Our audit procedures included the
Reliance Infra Co Ltd, amount outstanding as at | following:
year end is Rs. 3,765 lakhs (Last Year Rs. 3,765
lakhs). *Discussion with management
The management feels that no impairment lossisto | *Ensured proper disclosure in the
be recognized as the full amount is receivable. Financial Statements.
Considering the amount involved and the | *Against this liability Rs. 3,765 Lakh
management judgment it is a key audit matter. also parked in books

5 Dues from NVVN Our audit procedurcs included the
The Company has ducs from NVVN of Rs. 3,252 fO“_OWiﬂS? .
Lakh from the year 2014-15 to 2017-18 for which the :DISGUSSIOH with management .

. ) Ensure proper discloser in financial

company has filed petition before CERC challenging statement
the claim

3 Interest free Inter Corporate Deposit Our audit procedures included the

The Company has received ICD from group company
on which no interest is charged.

Amount outstanding is Rs. 68,142 Lakh (Last year
Rs. 68,142 Lakh)

following:

*Discussion with management
*Ensure proper discloser in financial
statement

*As per management under section 186
the ftransaction is covered under
infrastructure category and hence no
interest is charged.
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PPA Agrcement with NVVN from 2014 to 2023
As per the terms of the PPA entered with NTPC
Vidyut Vyapar Nigam Limited (NVVN), the
Company was required to generate minimum
committed energy of 219 Million Units in the
confract year subsequent to declaration of
commercial operation date (COD), else shortfall
penalty is payable as per the terms of the PPA. The
Company received minimum energy shortfall claim
of Rs. 26240 lakhs from NVVN for FY 2014-15, FY
2015-16, FY 2016-17, FY 2017-18 and FY 2018-19
and FY 2019-20..

*The company has filled Petition before
Central Electricity Regulatory
Commission (CERC) chailenging the
claim. NVVN has adjusted Rs 3,252
lakhs from the monthly invoices of the
Company till the date company obtained
the stay from Delhi High Court (DHC).

*Subsequent to grant of stay by DHC,
NVVN has been paying against the
Invoices. *Considering the assessment
of the above facts, and as legally advised,

the Company has not considered the
requirement for any provision for 2020-
21 and 2021-22.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information;

we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and those charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs, profit/loss and other comprehensive mcome, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give-a
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true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

101-Vaibhav Chambers, Madhusudan Kalelkar Marg, Behind Guru Nanak Hospital, Bandmﬁg&
Mumbai — 400051, Contact No. +91 2235120533 / 2235120534 / 2235120535, Email —
info@shridharandassociates.com

Page4




Shridhar & Associates
Chartered Accountants

* Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and quantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results
of our work and(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. ‘

2, As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and loss (including other Comprehensive Income),
the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under section
133 of the Act.

¢) The matter described in the material uncertainty related to going concern section above, in our
opinion, may have significant doubt on the functioning of the company.
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f) Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 3 1 , 2023 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31 , 2023
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2} of the Act.

g) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under section 197(16):As no
remuneration has been paid by the Company to the Directors during the current year Under
Section 197 (16) does not apply and required to be commented by us

h) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference fo financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B”,

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

iii.

The Company has vide Note No 5 disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at March 31,
2023 on its financial position in its financial statements,

The Company does not have any derivative contracts hence no provision is required under
the applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses ,if any, on long
term contracts including derivative contracts

There has been no amount, required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company for the year ended March 31% 2023.

(a) The management has represented to us that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person or
entity, including foreign entities (“Intermediarics”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the ultimate beneliciaries,

(b) The management has represented to us that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief no
funds have been received by the company from any person or entity, including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise that the company shall whether directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons
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vi.

or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf, of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries, and

(c) Based on our audit procedurc that has been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement,

The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

Proviso to Rule 3(1} of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 requires all companies which
use accounting software for maintaining their books of account, to use such an accounting
software which has a feature of audit trail, with effect from the financial year beginning on
1 April 2023 and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 (as amended) is not applicable for the current financial year

For SHRIDHAR & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No 134427W

Jitendra Sawjiany

Partner

(Membership No. 050980)
Place: Mumbai,

Date; 18" April 2023

UDIN: 23050980BGXYXL9833
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Annexure “A” to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 1 under heading” REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGFULATORY
REQUIREMENTS” of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of
RAJASTHAN SUN TECHNIQUE ENERGY PVT. LTD on the Ind AS financial statements as of and
for the year ended March 31, 2023

In terms of the information and explanation sought by us and given by the company and the books of
accounts examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state

that

(i) (a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation, of Property, Plant & Equipment.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its Property, Plant & Equipment,
by which all Property, Plant & Equipment are verified in a phased manner over a period of three
years. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the
size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, a portion of the Property,
Plant & Equipment has been physically verified by the Management during the year and no material
discrepancies between the book records and the physical assets were noticed on such verification.

(¢) In respect of immovable properties comprising of land taken on lease and buildings that have been
disclosed as Property, Plant and Equipment in the financial statements, the lease agreements or
other relevant records are in the name of the Company.

(d) The company does not have any proceedings initiated or are pending against the company for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,

(ii) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, the
frequency of such verification is reasonable. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of
inventory as compared to book records were not material.

(iii)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to any company, firm, limited liability partnerships or
other party covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act.

(iv)  Based on the information and explanations given to us in respect of loans, investments, guarantees
and securities, the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act,

to the extent applicable.

v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning the directives issued by the Reserve Bank
of India, provisions of Section 73 to 76 of the Act, any other relevant provisions of the Act and the

relevant rules framed thereunder.
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(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

According to the information and explanations given to us, provisions relating to maintenance of
cost records as prescribed under sub section (1) of section 148 of the act, are applicable to the
company.

{a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues in respect of tax deducted at source, goods and service tax, and is regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues, including provident fund, income tax, and other material statutory dues,
as applicable, with the appropriate authorities,

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no undisputed dues in
respect of provident fund, employees® state insurance, income tax, duty of customs, goods and
services tax and cess as at March 31, 2023 which were outstanding for a period of more than six
months from the date, they became payabie.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are dues of income tax, as at March 31, 2023 and which have been

deposited on account of a dispute,

Name of the statute Nature of Amount [Period to which Forum where the

dues {Rs. Crore) | the amount dispute is pending
relates
Income Tax Act income Tax 0.30 F.Y.2017-18 [Rectification u/s.154 is

filed online and to AO.
But, demand is not yet
made nil.

(A.Y.2018-19)

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination of the records
of the Company, no income has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination of the
records of the Company, the Company after the Revised term sheet signed between Samalkot
Power Ltd company and £xim Bank on 18 June, 2021 to restructure the loan has defaulted in
repayment of loans or borrowings to financial institution or bank or dues to debenture holders
following instances of defaults in repayment of principal and interest amount.
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Sr.
No.

Name of the
Lenders

Amount of Defaults as
March 31, 2023

Usb

Amount of

Defaults as

March 31,
2023

{Rs. In
Lakhs)

Period of Default as at
March 31, 2023

Principle Interest

ADB

2,23,68,600 | 1,34,01,311

29,409

7+ Jan 2019
7+ July 2019
v Jan 2020
7o July 2020
7= Jan 2021
7th July 2021
7th Jan 2022
7th July 2022
7th Jan 2023

US Exim

1,15,43,087 18,67,709

11,027

25 Jan 2019
25~ July 2019
25 Jan 2020
25+ July 2020
25~ Jan 2021
25+ July 2021
25« Jan 2022
25 July 2022
25+ Jan 2023

FMO Sr.

3,01,17,800 | 1,01,91,557

37555

7o Jan 2019
7= July 2019
7+ Jan 2020
7+ July 2020
7+ Jan 2021
7e July 2021
To Jan 2022
7= July 2022
7w Jan 2023

FMOQ Sub

38,64,000 | 52,49,628

74385

6th February

2019, Gth August
2019, 6th
February 2020
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6th Aug 2020
6th February 2021
oth Aug 2021
Gth Februaiy 2022
6th Aug 2022
6th February 2023

Total ECB OS 6,78,94,387 | 3,60,69,886 85,476

Total ECB
(INR)(75.8071)

B Axis Bank 32,43,03,500 ; 29,08,66,936 6152 | For Principle
Tth July 19
7th Oct 19
7th Jan 2020
7th April 2020
7th July 2020
7th Oct 2020
7th Jan 2021
7th Oct 2021
7th Jan 2022
Tth July 2022
7th Oct 2022
7th Jan 2023
For Interest :

Dec 2019 to 3 1st March
2023

Total o 91,628
Outstanding

(b) The Company is not declared a wiliful defaulter by any Bank or Financial Institution or other
lender.

(c) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public
Offer (including debt instruments) and in our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the term loans have been applied for the purposes for which they were
raised.

(d)As explained to us no funds were raised on short term basis have been utilized for long term
purposes.
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(e) As explained to us the company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of
or to meet the obiigations of its subsidiaries, associates

(f) As explained to us the company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities
held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

x) (a) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) and in our opinion and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the term loans have been applied for the purposes for which they were raised.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence the provisions of clause 3(xiv) of the

Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xi)  According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of whom we are unable to
comment on any potential implications for the reasons described therein, no fraud by the Company
or fraud on the Company by its officers and employees has been noticed or reported during the

course of our audit,

(xii)  The Company has not paid managerial remuneration during the current year and therefore, the
provisions clause (ix) of the order is not applicable to the Company,

(xiii)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
a Nidhi Company and accordingly the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable.

(xiv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company transactions entered into by the Company with the related parties are in
compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable and the details of related party
transactions as required by the applicable accounting standards have been disclosed in the financial

statements.

{(xv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company in respect of which we are unable to comment on any potential implications
for the reasons described therein, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xv) of the Order

are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi}  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be
registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, Accordingly, the

provisions of clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xvil) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has incurred
cash losses of Rs 11522 Lakhs in the financial year and Rs 7527 lakhs in the immediately preceding

financial year.

(xviii) There has not been any resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.
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of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilitics, other information
accompanying the financial statements, and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
Management plans, we are of the opinion that a material uncertainty exists as on the date of the
audit report and as per management the company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fail due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date.

(xx) The company is not required to constitute a CSR commiftee as section 135 is not applicable.

(xxi) The company is not a holding company and hence reporting under this clause is not applicable,

For SHRIDHAR & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No 134427W

Jitendrh Sawjiany

Partner

{(Membership No. 050980)
Place: Mumbai,

Date: 18" April 2023

UDIN: 23050980BGXYX1.9833
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements of RAJASTHAN SUN
TECHNIQUE ENERGY PVT. LTB for vear ended March 31, 2023

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

(Referred to in paragraph 2(h) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date)

We were engaged to audit the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
RAJASTHAN SUN TECHNIQUE ENERGY PVT. LTD as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our
audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date

Management’s Responsibility for ¥nternal Financial Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the interpal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Controls over Financial Reporting (‘Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013

(hereinafter referred to as “the Act™).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit conducted in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on
Auditing, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

Because of the matter described in the Disclaimer of Opinion section below, we were able to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on internal financial controls
system with reference to the financial statements of the Company.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

101-Vaibhav Chambers, Madhusudan Kalelkar Marg, Behind Guru Nanak Hospital, Bandra kast,;
Mumbai — 400051, Contact No. +91 2235120533 / 2235120534 / 2235120535, Email —
info@shridharandassociates.com
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Shridhar & Associates

Chartered Accountants
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
ncluding the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control with reference to
financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued

by the ICAI

For SHRIDHAR & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No 134427W

Jitendra Sawjiany

Partner

(Membership No. 050980)
Place: Mumbai,

Date: 18" April 2023

UDIN: 23050980BGXYXL9833

101-Vaibhav Chambers, Madhusudan Kalelkar Marg, Behind Guru Nanak Hospital, Bandra East,
Mumbai - 400051, Contact No. +91 2235120533 / 2235120534 / 2235120535, Email -
info@shridharandassociates.com
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Rajasthan Sun Technigue Energy Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023

Particulars
ASSETS

Non-current assets

Properly, plant and equipment
Other Intangible assets

Other non-current assets

Non Current tax assets (net)

Current assets
Inventories
Financial assets
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Loans
Finance lease receivables
Other financial assets
Current tax assets (nef)
Cther current assets
Total Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITH:S

Equity
Equity share capital

Other equity
instrument entirely equity in nature
Reserves and surplus

Liabilities
Non-current liabiiities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Other financial liabilities
Provisions
Other non-current liabilities

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Trade payables
Total Outstanding dues of micro enterprises and smail
enterprises
Total Outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises
Other financial liabilities

Other current liabilities
Provisions

Total Equity and liabilities

Significant accounting policies
Notes to financial statements

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Rupees In lakhs

Rupees In lakhs

Note As at As at
No. March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
3.1 1,18,983 1,13,386
3.2 6 6
33 3,765 3,765
3.4 200 190
3.5 1,311 771
3.6{(a) 3,655 4 537
3.6{b}) 2,244 1,447
3.8{c) 1,221 943
3.7(d) - -
3.6(d) 255 255
3.7 500 373
1,32,139 1,25,673
3.8 286 286
3.9.1 68,171 68,171
3.9.2 {1,37,638) (1,19,994)
3.10 84,862 92,353
3.1 3,765 3,765
3.12 70 60
3.13 636 636
3.14 73,490 54,094
3.15
3.16 38,249 26,098
347 232 187
3.18 17 17
1,32,139 1,25,673
2
3to 23




Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited

As per our attached report of Even date

For Shridhar & Associates
Firm Registration Number - 134427W
Chartered Accountanis

Jitendra Sawjlany

Fartner

Membership Number - 050980
Place :Mumbai

Date : Aprit 18,2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Meanof Pongde Mantu Kumar Ghosh
Biractor Director

DIN Number -7728813 DIN Number -07644889
Place :Mumbai Ptace :Mumbai

Date ; April 18,2023 Date : April 18,2023




Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended March 31, 2023

Rupees In lakhs

Rupees In lakhs

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Particulars Note

No.
Revenue from Operations 3.19
Other Income 3.20

Total Income

Expenses
Employee benefits expense 3.21
Finance costs 3.22
Depreciation and amortization expenses
Generation, adminstration and other expenses 3.23

Exceptional ltems
Profit/{Loss) before tax

Income tax expense
Current tax

Loss for the year (A}

Other Comprehensive Income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of net defined benefit plans

Total Other Comprehensive Income for the year (B)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (A+B)
Attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent
Non-controlling interests

Earnings/ {Loss) per equity share: (Face value of Rs. 10 each)

Basic 9

Diluted 9

Diluted 9
Significant accounting policies 2
Notes to financial statements 3to 23

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

3,853 5,507
239 95
4,092 5,692
499 416
12,859 11,310
6,118 6,100
2,256 1,494
(17,640) (13,627)
(17,640) (13,627)
(5) 4

(5) 4
{17,645) (13,623)
(617.56) (477.08)
(617.56) (477.08)
(308.78) (238.54)




Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited

As per our attached report of Even date

For Shridhar & Associates
Firm Registration Number - 134427W/
Chartered Accountants

Jitendra Sawjiany

Partner

Membership Number - 050980
Place :Mumbai

Date : April 18,2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Manoi Pongde Mahtu Kumar Ghosh
Direcror Director

DiN Number -77289813 DIN Number -07644889
Place :Mumbai Piace :Mumbai

Date : April 18,2023 Date : April 18,2023




Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited
Cash Flow Statomont for the period ended March 31, 2023

Particulars

{A)} Cash flow from/ {used in} Operating activities

(B)

(€}

Net Profiif (Loss) before tax
Adjustments for:
interest income
Finance cost
Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Net cash generated frem Operating activities

Operating profit before working capital changes
Adjusted for;
{Increase) decrease in trade receivables
(increase) decrease in foans and advances
(Increase)/ decrease in Inventories
{Decrease)/ Increase in trade payables
{Decrease) Increase in other tinancial liabilities
(Decrease)/ Increase in other non-current liabilities
(Decrease)! Increase in other current fabilities
(Decrcase) Increase in provisions
Cash generated from operations

Taxes paid (net of refunds})
Net cash generated from Operating activities

Cash flow from/ {used in) Investing activities

Interest received
(Increase) / Decrease in Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Net cash flow for (used in) Investing activities
Cash flow from/ {used in) Financing activities
Repayment of borrowing - secured

Interest and finance charges paid

Net cash generated/ (used in} Financing aclivities

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the quarter:
Bank balance - current account

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the quarter:
Bank balance - current account

Rupees in lakhs

Rupees In lakhs

Year ended

March 31, 2023

Year ended

March 31, 2022

{17,640) (13,627)
(58) (45)
12,859 11,310
6,118 6,100
1,279 3,737
881 (577)
(128) (1)
(540} (120)
- (62)
272.2 635
. 2
45 4
10 5
1,819 3,627
40y 2
1,808 3,629
58 a5
(277) 177
(219) 222
(318)
(720) (4,029)
(720) {4,345}
870 (494)
1,447 1,941
2,244 1,447

The statement of cash flow has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method' set out in indian Accounting Standards (ind AS) - 7

"Statement of Cash Flows" .

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financials statements.




Rajasthan Sun Technigue Energy Private Limited

As per our attached report of Even date

For Shridhar & Associates
Firm Registration Number - 134427W
Chartered Accountants

Jitendra Sawjiany

Partner

Membership Number - 050980
Place :Mumbai

Date : April 18,2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Mano] Fongde
Direttor

DIN Number -7728913
Place :Mumbai

Date : Aprif 18,2023

Mantr Kumar Ghosh
Director

DIN Number -07644888
Place :Mumbai

Date : April 18,2023
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Rafasthan Sun Technigue Energy Private Limited

As per our attached report of Even date

For Shridhar & Associates
Firm Registration Number - 134427W
Chartered Accountants

Jitendra Sawijiany

Partner

Membership Number - 050980
Place :Mumbai

Date : April 18,2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Manwj Pongde Mantu Kumar Ghosh
Director Director

DIN Number -7728913 DIN Number -07644889
Place :Mumbai Place :Mumbai

Date : April 18,2023 Date : April 18,2023




Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (continued)

1)

2)

General information

Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Reliance Power Limited. The
Company is a Special Purpose Vehicle to develop 100 mega watt (MW) Solar Concentrated Thermal Power
Project at Dhursar, Near Pokhran, District Jaisalmer, Rajasthan. The Company has entered info a Power
Purchase Agreement (PPA) for 100 MW capacity with NTPC Vidyut Vyapar Nigam Limited (NVVN).

I'he Company is a Private Limited Company which is incorporated and domiciled in India under the provisions of
the Companies Act. The registered office of the Company is located at Ground Floor, Reliance Centre, 19,
Walchand Hirachand Marg, Ballard Estate, Mumbai 400 001

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the board of directors on April 18,2023
Significant accounting policies and critical accounting estimates and judgments:
2.1 Basis of preparation, measurement and significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set oul below.
These poiicies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, uniess otherwise stated.

{a) Basis of preparation
Compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements are in compliance, in all material aspects, with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and other relevant provisions of the Act, as
amended, and rules made thereunder.

Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in ‘Indian Rupees’, which is also the Company functional currency. All
amounts are rounded W lhe neatest lakhs, unless otherwise stated.

Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
following:

«  Ceitain financial assets and financial liabifities al fair value;
* Defined bensfit plans - plan asscts that are measured at fair value;

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except certain financial
assets and financial liabilities which are measured at fair value.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The Company uses valuation techniques
that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant ohservahle inputs and minimising fhe use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole;

¢ Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

* lLevel 2 — Valuation techniques for which the fowest leve! input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly abservable

+ Llevel 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

Current vis-a-vis non-current classification

The assets and liabilities reported in the balance sheet are classified on a “current/non-current basis", with
separate reporting of assets held for sale and liabilities. Current assets, which include cash and cash
equivalents, are assets that are intended to be realized, sold or consumed during the normal operating cycle of
the Company or in the 12 months following the balance sheet date; current liabilities are Habilities that are
expected to be settled during the normal operating cycle of the Company or within the 12 months following the
close of the financial year. The deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and

liabilities.




Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (continued)

(b} Property, plant and equipment

(c)

Freshold land is carried at historicat cost. All other ifems of property, plant and equipment (PPE) are stated
at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly atiributable to the
acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when if is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting pericd in which they are incurred.

Expenditure incurred on assets which are not ready for their intended use comprising direct cost, related
incidental expenses and attributable borrowing cost are disclosed under Capital Work-in-Progress.

Accordingly all project related expenditure viz, civil works, machinery under erection, construction and
erection materials, pre-operative expenditure incidental / directly atiributable to construction of project,
borrowing coslt, construction stores, and direct operational expenses (net of revenue during constructions)
related to the units of power generated in the interim period, pending capitalisation, are disclosed as Capital

work-in-progress.
Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value:

Depreciation on PPE is provided to the extent of depreciable amount on Straight Line Method (SLM) based
on useful life of the following assets as prescribed in Part C of Schedule |i to the Companies Act, 2013
except in respect of Plant and equipment where useful life has been estimated as 25 years as prescribed
under Central Electricity Regulatory Commission and based on Internal assessment and technicai

evaluation by the management.

Particulars Estimated useful lives
Buildings 3 to 30 years

Lease hold Land Over the lease years
Plant and Equipment 10 to 25 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years

Motor Vehicles 10 years

Office Equipments 5 years

Computers 3 years

In respect of additions or extensions forming an integral part of existing assets and insurance spares,
including incremental cost arising on account of translation of foreign currency liabilities for acquisition of
Property, plant and equipment, depreclatlon is provided as aforesaid over the residual life of the respective

assets.

Estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation methods are reviewed annually, taking into account
commercial and technological obsolescence as well as normal wear and tear and adiusted prospectively, if

appropriate.

lLease hold land is amortised over the lease period from the date of receipt of advance possession or
execution of lease deed, whichever is earlier.

Intangible assets:

Intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable faxes less accumulated amortization /
depletion and impairment loss, if any. The cost comprises of purchase price, borrowing costs and any cost
directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use and adjustment arising

from
exchange rate variation attributable to the intangible assets,

Expenditure incurred on acquisition of intangible assets which are not ready to use at the reporting date is
disclosed under “intangible assets under development”.

Amortisation method and periods

Amortization is charged on a straight-line basis over a period of three years. The estimated useful life and
amortization method are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in T

the estimate being accounied for on a prospective basis.




Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (continued)

(d) Impairment of non-financial assets

(e)

{f}

Assets which are subject to depreciation or amortisation are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the assetf's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an assel's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of
assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Trade Receivable

Trade receivables are recognised initially af fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

Financial instruments:

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instruments of another entity.

investments and other financial assets
i. Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
» those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income,
or through profit or loss), and
« those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in
which the investment is held.

The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing
those assets changes.

ii. Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assels carried at fair value through
profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments: Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company's
business model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a
debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost is recognised in profit or ioss when
the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent
solely payments of principaf and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCIH). Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition
of impairment gains or fosses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from equity {o profit or loss and recognised in other gains/
(losses). Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective

interest rate method. ‘

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or
FVOC! are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is




Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited
Notes fo the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 [continued)

vi.

subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which it arises. Intereslincome from these financial assets is included in other income.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with is
assets carried at amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109
Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition
of the receivables.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognised only when:

* The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financiaf asset or
» retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a
contractual  obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients,

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred
substantially alf risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset
is derecognised. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised. Where the entity has neither transferred a
financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the
financial asset is derecognised if the Company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the
Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of
continuing involvement in the financial asset,

Income recognition
Interest income

Interest income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. When calcutating
the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the
contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Dividend

Dividends are recognised in profit or loss only when the right to receive payment is established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company, and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Derivative Financial Instruments:

Derivative are initially recognised at fair value on the date of derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measure to their fair value at the end of the each reporting period. Further gain /
{losses) arising on settlement and fair value change on derivative contracts are classified to finance
cost.

(g) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis
or realise the asset and settle the fability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

(h) Contributed equity

Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

(i) Financial liabilities

Classification as debt or equity




Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (continued)

)

Debt and equity inslruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definition of a

financial hability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities.

Initiai recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company's financial labilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including
bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financiaf instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Borrowings: Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of fransaction costs) and the redemption value s recognised in the statement of profit
and loss over the period of the borrowings using the effeclive inleresl method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the [oan o the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, in this case, the fee is
deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probabie that some or
all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services and
amonrtised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Trade and other payable: These amounts represent obligations to pay for goods or services that have
been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. These payable are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less otherwise they are presented as non-current
Habilities. Trade and payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest

method.

Financial guarantee contracts: Financial guarantee contract are subsequently measured at the higher
of the amount determined in accordance with Ind AS 37 and the amount initially recognised less
cumulative amortisation, where appropriate.

Derecognition

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that
has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-
cash

assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other gains/(losses).

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same iender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing lability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference
in the

respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a
material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the
effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify
the

liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the fi nancnal }
statements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a restilt of -
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the

amount has been reliably estimated.
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(k)

)

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the
present value is a pre-tax rate that retlects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due fo the passage of time is recognised as

interest expense.
Contingent liahilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence
of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Company. A present obligation that arises from past events where it is
either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to seltie or reliable estimate of the amount
cannot be made, is termed as contingent liability.

Contingent Assets:

A contingent asset is disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are asseis that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Foreign currency translation:
Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Company operates ('the functional currency’). The financial
statements are presented in ‘Indian Rupees’ (INR), which is the Company's functional and the
Company's presentation currency

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency fransactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

All exchange differences arising on reperting of short term foreign currency monetary items other than
derivative contracts at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded are recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss/ Capital Work in Progress.

In respect of foreign exchange differences arising on revaluation or settlement of long term foreign
currency monetary items, the Company has availed the option available in the Ind AS-101 fo continue
the policy adopted in Previous GAAP for accounting of exchange differences arising from translation of
long-term foreign currency monetary items outstanding as on March 31, 2016, wherein:

+ Foreign exchange differences on account of depreciable asset, is adjusted in the cost of depreciable
asset and would be depreciated over the balance life of asset.

+ In other cases, foreign exchange difference is accumulated in “foreign currency monetary item
transtation difference account” and amortised over the balance period of such long term asset / liabilities.
Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currency are stated at the rates prevailing on the date of the
transactions / exchange rate at which transaction is actually effected.

{m) Revenue recognition:

Revenue is recognized, when the control of the goods or services has been transferred to consumers.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of discounts and other

similar allowances. .

i: ‘Sale of energy
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(n)

Revenue from sale of energy is recognised on an accrual basis and in accordance with the provisions of
Power Purchase Agreemenl (PPA) willi NTPC Vidyul Vydpar Nigant Limiled (NVVN) read with Central
Electricity Regulatory Commission (CERC) regulations.

i. Other operating income

Revenue from certified reduction units is recognised as per terms and conditions agreed with trustee on
future sale of certified emission reduction units.

Employee benefits:

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly
within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are
recognised in respect of employees' services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are seftfed. The liahilities are presented as current
employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet,

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for earned leave and sick leave are not expected to be seltled wholly within 12 months after
the end of the period in which the employees render the related service. They are therefore measured as the
present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to
the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the
market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related
obligation. Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions

are recognised in profit or loss/ Capital Work-in-Progress.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an
unconditional right to defer selllement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of

when the actual settiement is expected to occur.
Post employee obligations

The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:
- defined benefit plans such as gratuity
- defined contribution plans such as provident fund.

Gratuity obligations

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the
present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan
assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit

method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in rupees is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on
government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate fo the net balance of the defined benefit
obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the

statement of profit and loss/ capital work in progress.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They
are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

Defined contribution plans

Provident fund
The Company pays provident fund contributions to pubiicly administered provident funds as per local
reguiations. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are accounted for as defined contribution pians and the contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.
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{0)

{p}

{a)

(n

Superannuation

Certain empioyees of the Company are participants in a defined contribution plan. The Company has no
further obligations to the plan beyond its monthly contributions which are contributed to a trust fund, the
corpus of which is invested with Reliance Life insurance Company Limited.

Income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and
liabilities .

attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at
the

end of the reporting period in the countries where the Company operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts

expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, on temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and
iiabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income tax is also net accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the
end of the repurling period and are expected to appiy when the related defemad incone lux assel is 1ealised
or the deferred income tax liability is settied.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax Josses only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the

liability simultaneously.

Current and deterred tax is recognised in profit or Inss, axcept to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. [n this case, the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents, deposits held at
call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or fess from date of acquisition that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share

Basic earmings per share is calciiated by dividing:

- the profit attributable to owners of the Company

- by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take
into

account;

- the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity
shares,

and
- the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the

conversion of all ditutive potential equity shares,

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments.
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(s)

{1

(u)

The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on
the available information.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the chief executive officer and
the chief financial officer that makes strategic decisions.

Dividends

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer at
the discretion of the entity, on or hefore the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the

reporting period.
Inventories:
Inventories of tools, stores, spares parts, consumable supplies and fuel are valued at lower of weighted

average cost, which inciudes all non refundable duties and charges incurred in bringing the goods to their
present ocation and condition, and net realizable value after providing for obsolescence and other losses.

2.2 Critical accounting estimates and judgments

(a)

(b}

{c)

-require.

Preparing the financial statements under Ind AS requires management to take decisions and make
estimates and assumptions that may impact the value of revenues, costs, assets and liabilities and the
related disclosures concerning the items involved as weli as contingent assets and liabilities at the balance
sheet date. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

The Company make estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates
will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year are discussed below:

Useful lives of Power plant and depreciation method

Management of the Company decided the estimated useful lives of power plant and respective depreciation.
The accounting estimate is based on the expected wears and tears incurred during power generation.
Wears and tears can be significantly different following renovation each time. When the useful lives differ
from the original estimated useful lives, management will adjust the estimated useful lives accordingly. It is
possible that the estimates made based on existing experience are different to the actual cutcomes within
the next financial period and could cause a material adjustment to the carrying amount of Property, plant
and eqguipments (Refer note 3.1 and 2(c)) .

Income taxes

There are transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain and would get
finalized on completion of assessment by tax authorities. Where the final tax outcome 1s ditterent trom the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions
in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax on temporary differences reversing within the tax holiday period is measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply during the tax holiday period, which is the nil tax rate. Deferred tax on temporary
differences reversing after the tax holiday period is measured at the enacted or substantively enacted tax
rates that are expected to apply after the tax holiday period. Management estimates that Company is not
likely to generate taxable income in the foreseeable future and accordingly deferred tax asset on unused tax
losses is not recognised {Refer note 11).

Fair value measurement and valuation process

The management determines the appropriate valuation technigue and inputs for fair value measurement. In
estimating the fair vafue, the management engages third party qualified valuer to perform the valuations if
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{d)

(e)

Estimates and judgements are continuously evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances (Refer note 12).

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its Property, plant and
equipment to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the

extent of the impairment loss (if any).
Recent accounting pronouncement:

On March 31, 2023, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023. This notification has resulted into amendments in the following
existing accounting standards which are applicable to company from April 1, 2023.

i Ind AS 101 — First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards

ii. IndAS 102 ~ Share-based Payment

iii.  Ind AS 103 - Business Combination

iv. Ind AS 107 — Financial Instruments Disclosures

v. Ind AS 109 - Financial Instrument

vi. Ind AS 115 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers

vii. Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements

viii, ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
ix. Ind AS 12 — Income Taxes

x.  Ind AS 34 - Interim Financial Reporting

Application of above standards are not expected fo have any significant impact on the company’s financial
statements
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (continued)
Rupees In fakhs

As at Ag at
Particufars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
3.3 Other non-current assets
{Unsecured and considered good)
Capital advances (refer note 8) 3.765 3,765
3,765 3,765
3.4 Non Current tax assets (net)
Current tax assets {refer note 10) 200 180
200 190
3.5 Inventorles
Stores and spares 1,311 771
1,311 771
3.6(a) Trade receivables {Refer Note - 22)
{Unsecured and considered good}
Others 3.655 4,537
3,655 4,537
3.6({b} Cash and cash equivaients
Balance with banks:
in current account 2,244 1,447
2,244 1,447
3.6{c) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivaients
Deposits with original maturity of more than three months but less than twelve months 1,221 943
1,221 943
3.6(d) Other current financial assets
{Unsecured and considered good)
Security deposits 158 158
Other Receivables =86 96
255 255
3.7 Other current assets
{Unsecured and considered good)
Advance recoverable in cash or in kind 207 26
Prepaid expenses 293 347

500 373
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3.8

-

3.9

3.9.11

3.9.1.Ha)

Particulars
Other equity

Balance at the end of the year
Instrument entirely equity in nature

Preference Shares
Inter-corporate deposits

Preference Shares

Authorised
10,000,000 (March 31, 2022: 10,000,000} preference shares of Rs. 1 each

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital
2,866,350 (March 31, 2022: 2,856,350) shares of Rs. 1 each

Reconciliation of number of shares
Preference shares [refer note no. 3.9.1.1(a)]

Balance at the beginning of the year
2,856,350 (March 31, 2022: 2,856,350) shares of Rs. § each

Balance ai the end of the year - 2,856,350 (March 31, 2022: 2,856,350) shares of Rs. 1 each

Terms/ rights attached to preference shares

7.5% Compuisory Convertible Redeemable Non-Cumnuiative Preference Shares (CCRPS)

Rupeeas In lakhs

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

29 29
68,142 68,142
68,171 68,171

100 100
100 100

29 29

29 29

29 29

23 29

The Company shalt have a call option on CCRPS which can be exercised by the Company in one or more tranches and in part or in full
before the end of agreed tenure (20 years) of the said shares. In case the call option is exercised, CCRPS shall be redeemed at an issue
price (i.e face value and premium). The holders of CCRPS however, shall have an option to convert CCRPS Into equity shares at any
time during the tenure of such shares, At the end of tenure and to the extent the Company or the shareholder has not exercised their
options, CCRPS shall be compulsorily converted into equify shares. On conversion, in either case, each CCRPS shall be converted into
one fully paid equity share of Rs. 10 each at a premium of Rs, 990 share. If during the tenure of CCRPS, the Company declares equity
dividend, CCRPS holders shall also be entitled to dividend on their shares at the same rate as the equity dividend and this dividend will
be over and above the coupon rate of 7.5%. These preference shares shall continue to be non cumulative.

Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares In the Company

Preference shares [refer note no. 3.9.1.1{a}]

Preference Shares of Rs. 1 each {ully paid up held by Reliance Power Limited - Holding

company
Percentage of holding in the class
Number of shares

100%
28,56,350

100%
28,56,350
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Particulars

3.9.1.2 Movement of instruments entirely equity in nature

3.9.1.3

3.9.2

3.9.21

3.9.2.2

3.9.2.3

Preference shares

Balance at the beginning of the year

894,000 (March 31, 2022: 894,000) shares of Re. 10 each fully paid-up

Balance at the end of the year - 894,000 {(March 31, 2022: 894,000) shares of Rs. 10 each
Inter Corporate Deposit (refer note B)

Opening balance

Add : received during the year

Reserves and surpius

Balance at the end of the year

Securities premium account

Retained earnings

Total reserves and surpius

Securittes premium account {refer note 3.9.2.3)
Balance at the beginning of the year

Balance at the end of the year
Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance at the beginning of the year

Profit/ {Loss) for the year

Balance at the end of the year

Nature and purpose of other reserves:
Securities premium account:

Rupees In lakhs

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

29 29

79 29
68,142 68,142
68,142 58,142
56,714 56,714
(1,94,353) (1,76,708)
{1,37,639} {1,18,995)
56,714 56,714
56,774 56,714
(1,76,708) {1,63,085)
(17,644) (13,623)
{1,94,353) (1,76,708)
(69,468) {51,823)

Security Premium account is for premium on issue of shares. The.reserve would be utilised in accordance with the provision of the

Companies Act, 2013.
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Rupees In lakhs

As at

Particulars

March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Financial Liabflities
3.1¢  Borrowings - Non-current

Secured - at amortised cost
Term loans:
Rupee loans from banks
Foreign currency loans from financial Institution/ other parties

4,271 5,245
80,591 87,108
84,862 92,353

3.10.1 Nature of security:

8) Term loans balance from all banks, financial Institution/ other parties of Rs.1,59,123 lakhs (March 31, 2022 : Rs.147,305 lakhs) is
secured/ fo be secured by first charge on all the Immovable and movable assets of the Company on pari passu basis and pledge of

100% of the total issued share capital of the Company held by the Holding Coempany.
b) Current matusities of long term borrowings have been classified as other current liabilities (Refer Note 3.14)

3.10.2 Terms of repayment of loans and rate of interest:

a} The Rupee loan has a tenure of upta 13.5 years from the date of first disbursement will be repaid in 54 unegual quarterly instalments
starting from January 07, 2014 and Interest rate is a floating rate linked to Axis Bank;s one year MCLR plus 3.7% p.a, payable on

monthly hasls. The outstanding balance as on year end is Rs. 7534 lakhs (March 31, 2022 Rs.7 534 lakhe).

b) Foreign currency loan from financial institution/ other parties of has a tenure of upto 17.36 years from the date of first disbursement. It will
be repaid in 33 unequal half yearly instalments starting from January 25, 2014 and carry fixed of 2.55% per annum payable half yearly.

The cutstanding balance as on year end is Rs.29,679 lakhs (March 31, 2022 Rs, 27,365 lakhs).

¢} Foreign currency loan from financial institution/ other parties has a tenure of upto 17.45 years from the date of first disbursement. It wifl
be repaid in 33 unegual half yearly instalments starting from January 7, 2014 and carry interest rate of LIBOR plus 365 basis peints per
annum payable half yearly. The outstanding batance as on year end is Rs. 57,091 lakhs (March 31, 2022 Rs.52,640 lakhs ).

d} Foreign currency loan from financial institution/ other parties has a tenure of upte 14.45 years from the date of first disbursement. it will
be repaid in 27 unequal half yearly instalments starting from January 7, 2014 and carry fixed interest rate of 5.95% per annum, payable

half yearly. The outstanding balance as on year end is Rs. 54,380 lakhs (March 31, 2022 Rs.48,600 lakhs ).

e} Foreign currency loan from financial instituticn/ other parties has a tenure of upto 17.53 years from the date of first disbursement. It will
be repaid in 33 unegual half yearly instalments starting from February 6, 2014 and carry fixed interest rate of 7.1% per annum, payable

half yearly. The outstanding balance as on year end is Rs.10,458 lakhs (March 31, 2022 Rs. 9,643 lakhs).

3.10.3 The amartised cost disclosed above is net off incidental cost of borrowings aggregating of Rs. 1,035 lakhs (March 31, 2022 Rs. 1,232

{akhs}.

341 Other non-current financial liabfitles
Retention money payable (refer note 8)

3.12 Provisions - Non-current

Provision for gratuity {refer note 6)
Provision for leave entitiement (refer note B)

3.13  Other liabilities - Non-current

Advance against certified emmission reduction

3,765 3.765
3,765 3,765
43 36
27 24

70 80
636 636
636 636




Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 {continued)

3.14

3.15

3.16

3.17

3.18

Particulars

Financial Liabilities - Borrowings Current
Secured - at amortisad st

Inter-corporate deposits from holding company (refer note 8)

Current borrowings
Secured - at amortised cost
Current maturities of long-term borrowings (refer note: 3.10)

Trade payables
Total Qutstanding dues of micso enterprises and small enterprises
Total Qutstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and smail enterprises

Other financial liabitities

Current maturities of long-term borrowings
interest accrued but not due on borrowings
Interest accrued and due on borrowings
Creditors for supplies and services

Retention money payable

Dues {o Holding Company (refer note 8)
Provision for Regulatory Matters (refer note 4(b))
Other payables

Other Current Liabilities
Advance against certified emmission reduction

Other payables”
*(Including provident fund, fax deducted at source and other misceflanaeous payables)

Provisions

Provision for gratuity {refer note 6)
Provision for leave entitlement {refer note 6)

Rupees in lakhs

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

302 302
302 302
73,187 63,792
73,187 53,792
2,214 1,420
30,466 79,380
1,189 942
177 377
304 304
3,252 3,252
647 422
38,249 26,098
176 176

56 1i

232 187

13 13

5 4

17 17
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Rupees in lakhs

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

3.8 Share capital

Authorised

4,000,000 {(March 31, 2022; 4,000,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 400 400
400 400

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital

2,856,350 (March 31, 2022: 2,856,350) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up 285 286
286 286

3.8.1 Reconciliation of number of shares

Equity shares

Balance at the beginning of the year - 2,856,350 {March 31, 2022: 2,856,350) shares of Rs. 10 each 286 286

Balance at the end of the year - 2,856,350 {March 31, 2022: 2,856,350) shares of Rs. 10 each 286 286

3.8.2 Rights, preference and restriction attached to equity shares

Equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs.10 per share. Each hoider of the equity share is entitied to one vote per
share. in the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Company,

after distribution of alt preferential amounts.

3.8.3 Shares held by Holding Company
Equity shares

Reliance Power Limited - Holding Company 286 286
2,856,350 (March 31, 2022: 2,856,350) shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid
(Out of the above 2,856,349 (March 31, 2022 2,856,349) equity shares are by Reliance Power Limited,
the Holding Company and 1 Equity Share was jointly held by Reliance Power Limited and its Nominges)
286 286
3.8.4 Detaiis of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company
Equity shares
Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up held by Reliance Power Limited - Holding Company
Percentage of holding In the class 100% 100%
Number of shares 2,85,63,500 2,85,63,500
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Particulars

3.19 Revenue from operations

Sale of energy

3.20 Other income
Interest income:
Bank deposits
Other non-operating income

3.21 Employee benefits expense

Salaries, bonus and other allowances
Contribution to provident fund and other funds

Gratuity and leave encashment (Refer note 6)

3.22 Finance cost

Interest on:
Rupee term loans
Foreign currency loans
Others

3.23 Generation, administration and other expenses

Stores and spares consumed
Water Charges
Hire charges
Rent expenses
Repairs and maintenance
- Plant and equipment
- Others

l.egal and professional charges (including shared service

charges)

Postage and telephone
Travelling and conveyance
Rates and taxes '
Insurance

Miscellaneous expenses

31, 2023 {continued)

Rupees In iakhs

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Year ended
March 31, 2022

3,853 55697
3,853 5,597
58 45
182 50
239 95
463 383
18 15

17 18
499 416
895 918
8,754 8,388
3,210 2,003
12,859 11,310
506 352
313 317
503 249
11 9
120 174

1 1

138 81

2 3

31 12
302 26
193 195
136 74
2,256 1,494
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4)

5)

6)

a)

b)

Contingent liabilities and commitments

(a) The Company has declared its Concentrated-Solar Power (CSP) plant as commercially operational (COD)
as per terms of PPA on November 17, 2014 against the scheduled commissioning date (SCD) of March 07,
2014 as per the terms of Power Purchase Agreement (PPA). The Company has filed a petition before
Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (CERC) for extension of SCD. Pleadings in the said petition have
been completed and the matter is to be listed for hearing.

(b} As per the terms of the PPA entered with NTPC Vidyut Vyapar Nigam Limited (NVVN), the Company was
required to generate minimum commitied energy of 219 Million Units in the contract year subsequent to
declaration of commercial operation date (COD), else shortfall penally is payable as per the terms of the
PPA. The Company received minimum energy shortfall claim of Rs. 26,240 lakhs from NVVN for FY 2014-
16, FY 2015-16, FY 2016-17, FY 2017-18, FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20 and company has filled Pefition
before Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (CERC) challenging the claim. NVVN has adjusted Rs
3,252 lakhs from the monthly invoices of the Company till the date company obtained the stay from Delhi
High Court (DHC). Subsequent to grant of stay by DHC, NVVN has been paying against the Invoices.
Considering the assessment of the above facts, and as legally advised, the Company has not considered
the requirement for any provision,

(c) Estimated amount of contracts remaining unexecuted on capital account (net of advances paid) and not
provided for Rs. Nil (March 31, 2022 Rs Nt lakhs)

Details of remuneration to auditors:
Rupees in lakhs

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
(a) As auditors
For statutory audit 5 5
For Certification @ @
(b) Out-of-pocket expenses @ @

@ Amount is below the rounding off norm adopted by the Company.

Employee benefit obligations

The Company has classified various employee benefits as under:

Leave obligations

The leave obligations cover the Company liability for sick and privileged leave.
Rupees in lakhs

Provision for leave encashment March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current® 5 4
Non-current 27 24

* The Company does not has unconditional right to defer the settlements.
Defined contribution plans

(i) Provident fund

(iKY Superannuation fund

{iii) State defined contribution plans
- Cmployees’ Pension Scheme 1995

The provident fund and the state defined contribution plan are operated by the regional provident fund
commissioner and the superannuation fund is administered by the trust. Under the schemes, the Company is
required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost to the retirement benefit schemes to fund the
benefits.

The Company has recognised the following amounts in the Capital work-in-progress / Statement of Profit and
Loss for the year:




Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (continued)

Rupees in fakhs
Yearended Year ended March

Particulars March 31, 2023 31, 2022
(i} Contribufion to provident fund 12 6
(i) Contribution to employees' superannuation fund @ @
(i) Contribution to employees’ pension scheme 1995 6 6
(iv) Contribution fo employees’ deposit linked insurance @ 1
scheme

@ Amount is below the rounding off norm adopted by the Company.
c) Post employment obligation

Gratuity

The Company has a defined benefit plan in India, governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The plan
entitle an employees, who has rendered at least five years of continuous service, to gratuity at the rate of fifteen
days basic salary for every completed years of services or part thereof in excess of six months, based on the
rate of basis salary last drawn by the employee concerned.

(i Significant estimates: actuarial assumptions

Valuations in respect of gratuity have been carried out by an independent actuary, as at the Balance Sheet date,
based on the following assumptions:

Particuiars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Discount rate (per annum) 7.30% 6.55%
RRate of increase in compensation levels 7.5% 7.5%

The estimate of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuariat valuation, takes into account inflation,
seniority, promotion and other refevant factors including supply and demand in the employment market.

(i) Balance sheet amount (Gratuity Plan)
Rupees in lakhs

. Present value of Fair value of
Particulars obligation plan assets Net amount
Balance as on March 31, 2021 43 - 43
Current service cost 7 - 7
interest cost 3 - 3
Total amount recognised in profit and loss 10 - 10
Remeasurements
Return on plan assets, excluding amount
included in interest expense/(income) - - -
{Gain) / loss from change in demographic
assumptions - - -
{Gain) / loss from change in financial
assumptions - - -
Experience (gains) / losses 4) - (4)
Total amount recognised in other
comprehensive income {4) - {4)
Employer contributions -
Benefit payments ) - -
Balance as on March 31, 2022 49 - 49
Rupees in lakhs
Particulars Present v?iue. of Fair value of Net amount
obligation plan assets
Balance as on March 31, 2022 49 - 43
Current service cost 7 - 7
fnterest cost 3 - 3
Total amount recognised in profit and loss 10 - 10
Remeasurements
Return on plan assets, excluding amount
included in interest expense/(income) - - -

(Gain)} / loss from change in demographic
assumptions -
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(Gain) { less from change in financial
assumptions

Experience (gains) / losses

Total amount recognised in other
comprehensive income

Employer contributions

Benefit payments

Balance as on March 31, 2023

The net liability disclosed above relates to funded and unfunded plans are as follows:

Particulars

Present value of funded obligations
Fair value of pian assets

Deficit of gratuity plan

Unfunded plans

Deficit of gratuity plan

(iif} Sensitivity analysis:

(8)
(5}

)
54

March 31, 2023

58
56

- (4)
- (4)

Rupees in lakhs
March 31, 2022

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

Change in assumptions

Particulars March
31, 2023

Discount rate 0.50%

Rate of increase

in compensation

levels 0.50%

Increase in
assumptions

March March March
31, 2022 31, 2023 31, 2022
0.50% -3.83% -3.94%
0.50% 4.05% 4.15%

49
49
Decrease in
assumptions
March March
31, 2023 31, 2022
4.07% 4.21%
-3.84% -3.93%

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions
constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated.
When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same
method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the
end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the
balance sheet. The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change

compared to the prior period.

For unfunded plan, the Company has no compulsion to pre fund the liability of the plan. The Company’s policy is
not to externally fund these liabilities but instead recognizes the provision and pay the gratuity to its employees
directly from its own resources as and when the employee leaves the Company.

7) Assets pledged as security

’.___.Eg_.r.tlculgars

March 31, 2023

Rupees in lakhs
March 31, 2022

Non-current

Financial assets

First charge

Loan

Non-financial assets

First charge

security

Property, plant and equipment 1,18,983 1,13,386
Other Intangible agsets 6 8
Other non-current assets 3,765 3,765
Total non current assets pledged as

1,22,753 1,17,167
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Current

Financial assets

First charge )

Trade receivables 3,655 4,637

Cash and bank balances 2,244 2,391

Loans 158 158 |

Other financial assets 96 96

Non-financial assets

Inventories 1311 771

Other current assets 500 373

Total current assets pledged as security 9,186 8,326
| Total assets pledged as security 1,31,939 1,25,483

8} Related party transactions:

A. Investing Parties/Promoters having significant influence on the Company directly or indirectly

Companies
Reliance Infrastructure Limited (R Infra)

Parties where control exists:

Holding Company
Reliance Power Limited (RPower)

Feliow subsidiaries:
Dhursar Solar Power Private Limited (DSPL)
Vidharbha Industries Power Limited (VIPL)

Rosa Power Supply Company Limited (RPSL)

Other entities with whom transactions have been done during the year

_: Detalls of transactions during the year and cloéihg balance at the end

of the year:

Rupees in lakhs

March 31,
2023

March 31, 2022

(i)

Transactions during the year:

by

Reimbursement of expenses and advances

|- R Power

- RPSL

- VIPL

Rupees in lakhs

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

(i)

Closing Balance :

Equity share capital (excluding premium)

- R Power

Preference share capital {excluding
premium)

286

- R Power

29

29

Retention payable towards EPC

- R infra

3,765

3,765

Other current financial Assets
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- Rinha 96 96
Other current liabilities
- R Power 300 300
RPSL 2 2
Advance against EPC contract
- Rinfra 3,765 3,765
inter corporate depositpayable ¢+ e
- R Power (Deemed equity) 68,142 68,142
- R Power 302 302
Guarantees Issued on behalf of the

_Company
- R Power 11,471 11,471

(i) The above disclosures do not include transactions with public utility service providers, viz, electricity,

telecommunications in the normal course of business.

(iv) The Company has entered into & memorandum of understanding for sharing of certain assets between the

Company and DSPL.

9) Earnings/ (Loss) per share:

; . Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Profit/(Loss) available to equity shareholders
Net profit after tax (A) (Rupees in lakhs) (17,840) | (13827)
Weighted average number of equity shares (B) 2,856,350
Basic earnings per share (A/B) ({(Rupees) (617.56) (477.08)
Weighted average number of potential equity shares on account of 2,856,350 2,856,350
conversion of preference shares (C)

Weighted average number of shares for Diluted EPS(D=B+C) 5,712,700 5,712,700
Diluted earnings per share (A/D) { Rupees)* (308.78) (238.54)
: Nominal value of an equity share (Rupses) 10 10

*7.5% computsory convertible redeemable non-cumulative preference shares had anti-difutive effect on earnings per
share and have not been considered for the purpose of computing diluted earnings per share.

10} Income taxes

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended:March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 are as under:

(a) The reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by tax rate

Rupees in Lakh

Particulars March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
- Profit/(Loss) before tax (A) o (17,640) (13,627)
Tax at the Indian tax rate of 26.17% (2021-22 -25.17%) (4,586) (3,543)
Tax effect of amounts which are net deductible(taxable) in calculating
taxable income:
Deferred tax assets not recognised on impairment foss - -
Deferred tax assets not recognised on tax foss for the year 5152 4,855
Other adjustments (net) (9,732) {(8,398)
Income taxexpense =~ - -
(b) Tax liabilities/ (Assets):
Rupees in Lakh
Provision for income tax (advance tax) - Opening balances (190) (184)
Taxes paid (net of refund) (10} (6)
Current tax payable for the year - -
Income tax for earlier years - -
Excess provision written off
Proyision for income tax {advance fax) ~ Closing balances (200) (190)
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(c) Tax losses

Rupees in Lakh

- Unused tax losses for which no deferred tax asset has been
\_recognised 86,899 | 71,729
| Potential Tax benefits @ 25.17% 21,873 | 18,054

*The Company has not recognized deferred tax assets on carried forward business iosses and unabsorbed
depreciation as the company does not have reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available
against which deferred tax assets can be realized.

11) Fair value measurements

{a) Financial instruments by category

Rupees in lakhs
March :?1, 2023 March 31, 2022
. Amortised Amortised
FVPL cost FVPL cost
Financial assets
Loans - 158 - 158
Derivalive instruments e - -
Trade receivables - 3,655 - 4,537
Cash and cash equivalents - 2244 - 1,447
Bank deposits with more than 12 - 1221 - 943
months maturity
Other receivables - 96 - 86
Total financial assets - 7,375 - T8
| Financial liabilities "y U D
Borrowings - 1 ,90,729 - 1 ,66,945
Other financial liabilities - 5,570 - 5,297
Derivalives Liabililies T - -
- 1,96,299 - 1,72,243

Total financial liabilities

{b) Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial
instruments thaf are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for
which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the refiability of the
inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified.its financial instruments into the three levels
prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each leve! follows underneath the table.

Assets and Habilities which are measured at amotrtised cost for which fair values are disclose as at

March 31, 2023
Rupees in lakhs

gParticufars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 ' Total

Financial assets

Security deposits - - 4 4
Total financial assets - - 4 4
| Financial Liabilities - B R
i Others financial liabilites - -1 199784 1,99,784 |

Borrowings . . 3,765 3,765
_Total financial liabilities _ . 203549 | 2.03.649 |
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Assets and iiabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclose as at

March 31, 2022
..................... Rupees in lakhs

Particulars Level 1 Level 2 lLevel 3 Total

Financial assets

Security deposits - -
Total financial assets - - “
Financial Liabilities

_Others financial liabilities R 3,765 3,765
Borrowings - - 1,76,091 1,76,091
Total financial liabilities 1,79,856 ; 1,79,856

{c) Valuation processes

The Company obtains assistance of independent and competent third parly valuation experts to perform the
valuations of financial assets and fiabilities required for financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair values.
Discussions of valuation processes and results are held between the Company and the valuer on periodically basis.

Discount rates are determined using a capital asset pricing model to calculate a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of lhe lime value ol money and the 1isk specific to the asset,

(d) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost
Rupees- in lakhs

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Carrying . Carrying .

amount Fair value amount Fair value
Financial Assets
Security deposits - - 4 4
Total financial
assets - - 4 4
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings* 1,890,729 1,989,784 1,656,945 1,76,091
Other financial
liabilities 3,765 3,765 3,765 3,765
Total financial
liabilities 1,94,494 2,03,549 159,480 1,79,856

*Carrying amount of borrowing includes long term borrowing, current maturity of long term borrowing and interest
accrued but not due on borrowing.

The carrying amount of current financial assets and liabilities (other than current maturity of long term borrowing and
interest accrued but not due on borrowing which have been considered as part of borrowing) are considered to be the
same as their fair values, due to their short term nature.

The fair value as of March 31, 2023 of the long-term Barrowings with floating-rate of interest is not impacted due to
interest rate changes, and will not be significantly different from their carrying amounts as there is no significant
change in the under-lying credit risk of the Company borrowing (since the date of inception of the loans).

For financial assets and liabilities that are measures at fair value, the carrying amount is equal to the fair values.

Note
Level 1 : Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example over-the-counter
derivatives) is determined using valuation technigues which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as
little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3. If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in
Jevel.3 This is the case for unlisted equity securities which are included in level,




Rajasthan Sun Technigque Energy Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 {continued)

There were no transfers between any levels during the year.

The Company’s policy is to recognise transfer into and transfer out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the
reporting period.

12) Financial risk management
The Company's business activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, namely liquidity risk, market risks and

credit risk.
Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management
Credit Risk Cash and cash Aging analysis Only high rated
equivalents, trade banks/institutions are
receivables and financial accepted.
assets measured at
amortised cost.
Liguidity Risk Borrowings and other Rolling cash Availabitity of
liabilities flow forecasts committed credit lines
and borrowing facilities
Market risk — Recognised financial Sensitivity Partly hedge by
foreign assets and liabilities not analysis foreign exchange
exchange denominated in Indian forward, cross
rupee (INR) currency and call
spread contract
Market risk ~ Long-term borrowings at Sensitivity Partly hedge by
interest rate variable rates analysis Interest rate swap

{a) Credit risk

The Company is exposed to credit risk, which is the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual
obligation resulting in a financial loss to the Company. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents,
financial assets carried at amortised cost and deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit
exposures to trade cusfomers towards sale of electricity as per the terms of PPA, CERC and with public sector

undertakings.
Credit risk management

Credit risk is managed at Company level depending on the policy surrounding credit risk management. For
banks and financial institutions, only high rated banksfinstitutions are accepted. Generally all policies
surrounding credit risk have been managed at Company level except for those surrounding accounts receivable

balances.

The Company has a PPA with a large public limited Company. The credit risk is considered to be low. The
procurer has been paying the dues on a timely basis during the year.

{b) Liquidity risk

(i} Management monitors the rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position and cash and cash
equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. As the Company does not have sufficient operational
cash inflows the Company is fargely dependent now upon the parent company's support {(Refer note4
above).

(ii) Maturitics of financial liabilities

The amounts disclosed in the below are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within
12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant

Rupess in lakhs

Between 1 | .,
March 31, 2023 Less than 1 year and 5 More than 5 Total
year years
years

Non-derivatives Financial

liabilities

Borrowings*® (Refer note 4) 1.11,256 68,823 16,529 1,96,608

Trade payables - - - -

Creditors for supplies and

services 1,189 - - 1,189
i Retention money payable ; 3,942 -~ - 3,942
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Dues to Holding Companies 304 | - - 304
Other financial liabilities 3,899 - - 3,809
Total Non-derivatives

Financial liabilities 1,20,590 68,823 ) 16,529 2,05,942

Rupees in lakhs

March 31, 2022 Less than 1 ?:;:, ond§ | Morethans Total

year yoars years
Non-derivatives Financial
liabilities
Borrowings* 77,880 72,200 33,346 1,83,427
Trade payables - - - -
Creditors for capital expenditure 942 - - 942
Retention money payable 4,142 - - 4,142
Dues to Holding Companies 304 - - 304
Other financial liabilities 3,674 - - 3,674
Total Non-derivatives
Financial liabilities 86,942 72,200 33,348 1,92,489

*Includes contractual interest payments based on the interest rate prevailing at the reporting date.

{c) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair values of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of volatility of prices in the financial markets. Market risk can be further segregated as: a) Foreign currency
risk and b} Interest rate risk.

(i) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company has long term monetary liabilities which are in
currency other than its functional currency. Foreign currency risk, as defined in Ind AS 107, arises as the
value of recognised monetary assets and monetary liabilities denominated in other currencies fluctuate due
to changes in foreign exchange rates. '

While the Company has direct exposure to foreign exchange rate changes on the price of non-indian Rupee-
denominated borrowings. For that reason, the below sensitivity analysis may not necessarily indicate the
total effect on the Company’s net assets attributable to holders of equity shares of future movements in
foreign exchange rates.

* Foreign currency risk exposure:

The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk (all in USD §) at the end of the reporting period expressed

in INR, are as follows.
Rupees in lakhs

iMarch 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Financial Habifities
Borrowings 1,569,123 1,47,305
Retention money 3,765 3,765
Total Financial liabilities 1,62,888 1,51,070
Total Covered by derivatives - -
Net exposure to foreign currency risk 1,62,888 1,51,070

» Sensitivity of foreign currency exposure

The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency
denominated financial instruments.

¢ Impact on profit before tax /
Capital work-in- progress™*
¢ USD sensitivity March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
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| FX rate — increase by 6% on closing rate on reporting date”

(11501)

{10,086)

FX rate— decrease by 6% on closing rate on reporting date

11501

10,086

! * Holding alf other variables constant

**The above impact has been assessed taking into consideration the accounting policy adopted by the

Company for the accounting for foreign exchange differences. (Refer note 2.1(1) above).

{ii} Interest rate risk

The Company’s main interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings with variable rates, which
expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. During March 31, 2021 the Company’s borrowings at

variable rate were mainly denominated in USD.

The Company’s fixed rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subject to
interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows

wilt fluciuate because of a change in market interest rates.

s Interest rate risk exposure

The exposure of the Company’s borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as

follows:

lakhs

Rupees in

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

64,586

60,175

» Sensitivity of Interest

Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest

rates,

Rupees in lakhs

Impact on profit before tax

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Interest rates — increase by 5% on existing Interest cost* (270) (161}
Interest rates — decrease by 5% on existing Interest
cost® 270 161

* Holding all other variables constant

13} Capitai Management

(a) Risk Management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for sharcholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Company may adjust the amouni of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new

shares or sell assets to reduce debt. (Refer note 4 above)

The Company monitors capital on basis of total equity and debt on a periodic basis. Equity comprises all
components of equity includes the fair value impact. The following table summarizes the capital of the Company:

Rupees in lakhs

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Equity {(excluding other (69,182) (51,538)
reserves)
Debt 1,568,049 1, 46,145
Total 88,867 94,607
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14) Deiay Default in repayment of borrowing (Non-current) and interest

The Company has delayed/defauited in the payment of borrowings. The lender wise details are as under:

15)

16}

17)

Name of
Lender Borrowings Interest
Delay in repayment Delay in repayment
during the year ended Default as at during the year Default as at March
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2023 ended March 31, 2023 31, 2023
Period
Period Amount | (Maxim Period Period

Name of | Amount {Maximum | (in um Amount (Maximum | Amount | (Maximu

Lender (in lakhs) | days) lakhs) days (in lakhs) | days) (in lakhs) | m days
Asian
Developm
ent Bank - - | 18,391 1544 - - 11,018 911
US Exim - - 9,491 1526 - - 1,536 795
FMO-
Senior
Debt - - 24762 | 1544 - - 12,793 1003
FMO-Sub
Debt - - 3,177 1514 - - 4,308 1514
Axis Bank
Lid. - - 3.243 1363 - - 2,909 1154
Total - - 59,064 32,564
Segment reporting

Presently, the Company is engaged in only one segment viz "Generation of Power' and as such there is no
separate reportable segment as per Ind AS 108 'Operating Segments’. Presently, the Company's operations are
predominantly confined in india. The Company's Board of Directors are chief operating decision makers of the

Cutnipany.
Information about major customers

Revenue for the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 were from customers located in India.
Customers include private distribution entities. Revenue to specific customers exceeding 10% of total revenue
for the years ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 were as follows {refer note 2(n){i):

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Particulars Revenue In Revenue In ’

lakhs Percent lakhs Percent i

NTPC Vidyut Vyapar Nigam
Limited 3,853 100% 5,597 100%

Exchange Difference on Long Term Monetary Items

As explained above in note 2.1(l) with respect to exchange differences, the Company has adjusted the value of
Rs. 11,713 lakhs Loss in PPE {March 31, 2022: adjusted the value of Rs 4,245 lakhs Loss in PPE towards
the exchange difference arising on long term foreign currency monetary liabilities towards depreciable assets.

a) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person{s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities {Intermediaries} with the understanding that the Intermediary shall directly or indirectly land or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner by or on behalf of the company (ultimate beneficiaries)
or provide any guaraniee, securily or the like (o or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

(b) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise} that the Company shall
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the funding party company (ultimate beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the fike to
or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.
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18) As per Section 248 of the Companies Act 2013, there are no balances outstanding with struck off companies.

19}

20)

21)

During the year the company is not declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or the Lender.
The information for Self- generated Certified Emission Reductions (CERs) relating to certified emission rights are
as follows:-

L Sr. . Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
No. March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
a) No. of CERs held as inventory and the basis of - -

valuation
b) No. of CERs under certification 64,646 64,646
C) Depreciation and operating and maintenance - -

costs of Emission Reduction equipment
expensed during the year
Net debt reconciliation
Rupees in lakhs
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Borrowings
Opening Balance
- Non Current 92,353 1,03,039
- Current 53 792 38,886
Changes in Fair Value
- impact of Effective Rate of Interest 264 289 |
- Exchange (gain) / loss 11713 4,245
Repaid during the year/period (73) {315)
Closing Balance
- Non Current 84,862 92,353
- Current (Refer note 4) 73,188 53,792
Inter corporate deposit
 Opening Balance 68,444 68,444
Availed during the year - -
Repaid during the year - -
Closing Balance 68,444 68 444
Interest Expenses
interest accrued but not due on borrowings (Opening) 20801 13,789
Interest Charge as per Statement Profit & Loss 12,859 11,310
Changes in Fair Value
- impact of Effective Rate of Interest (264) (290)
interest paid to Lenders {(716) (4008)
Interest accrued but not due/ and due on borrowings
(Closing) 32,680 20,801
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22) Trade Receivabie Ageing Schedule :

Rs. [In Lakh
Particulars OS for Following period from Due date of Payment
Less than 1-2Year 2- 3 Years More than Total
1 Year 3 Year
Undisputed Trade
Receivables
- .. Considered Good 403 - - - 403
Undisputed Trade
Receivables
Considered doubtful - - - - -
Disputed Trade
Receivables
- ConsideredGood - - - 3,252 3,252
Disputed Trade
Receivables
Considered Doubtful - - - - -
Total 403 - - 3,262 3,655
23} Ratios :
Sr Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
A Current ratio
0.08 0.10
B Debt Equity ratio
(2.29) (2.84)
C Debt Service Coverage ratio
(0.10) {0.33)
D Return on Equity ratic
0.25 0.26
F Trade Receivables turnover ratic
1.37 1.71
G Trade Payables turnover ratio
NA NA
H Net Capital turnover ratio
(0.06) (0.11)
| Net Profit ratio
(4.58) {243
J Return on capital employed
{0.20} (0.14)

Ratios have been computed as under:

A
B.
C.

Xe~TemMmo

Current Ratio: Current Assets/Current Liabilities

Debt Equity Ratio = Total Debt / Equity excluding Revaluation Reserve

Debt Service Coverage Ratio = Earnings before Interest and Tax and exceptional items / (Interest on Long
Term and Short Term Debt for the periodfyear + Principal Repayment ol Long Term Debt for the period/
year).

Return on Equity = Net profit / Shareholder's fund

Inventory turnover ratio = Turnover / Average inventory

Trade Receivables turnover ratio = Turnover / Average Receivables

Trade Payables turmover ratio = Turnover / Average Payables

Net Capital turnover ratio = Turnover / Capital Employed

Net Profit ratio = Net Profit / Turnover

Return on capital employed = Net Profit / (Debt +Equity)

Return on Investment = Net profit before interest and dividend / Equity
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